
Dated:  January 9, 2026  *  Denotes Information Not Enclosed 

AGENDA 
 

OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
PSS LEARNING COMMONS 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 14, 2026, 6:00 P.M. 
 

Success for ALL Learners Today and Tomorrow 
 
 
1.  Acknowledgement of the Traditional Territories and Metis Community 
 
 
2.  Agenda 
 
 
3.  Minutes of the Open Meeting held December 10, 2025 
 
 
4.  Business Arising from the Minutes 
 
 
5.  Report on the Closed Meeting held December 10, 2025 
 
 
6.  EDUCATION  
 

a) Indigenous Education Report (In Person Presentation) 
 

b) Indigenous Student Achievement 
 

c) Inclusive Education, Early Learning, and Child Care Report 
 

d) 2026-2027, 2027-2028, 2028-2029 School Calendars 
 
 * e) Superintendent’s Report 
 
 
7.  AUDIT AND FINANCE  
  

a) 2025-26 Ministry of Education Funding Announcements / Budget Update 
 

b) 2024-25 Statement of Financial Information Report 
 
 
8.  POLICY AND ADMINSTRATIVE PROCEDURES 
 
  Administrative Procedures (Information) 
 

a) n/a 



Dated:  January 9, 2026  *  Denotes Information Not Enclosed 

 
 
9.  TRUSTEE REPORTS 
 
 * a) Student Trustee Reports 
 
 
 * b) P.A.C. Reports 
 
 
 * c) Other Reports 
 
 
10.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 

a) Princeton Pickleball Association Letter 
 

b) DPAC Letter 
 

11.  PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT   
 



MINUTES 

OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE  
NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN SCHOOL DISTRCIT (NO.58) 

 
MERRITT SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE, BOARD ROOM 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2025, 6:00PM 
 

Success for ALL Learners Today and Tomorrow 
 

Present: Chairperson       G. Swan (Absent) 
   

Vice-Chair       L. Ward  
 
Trustees       J. Jepsen  
        J. Kent-Laidlaw 
        E. Hoisington 
        J. Chenoweth 
        D. Rainer 
 
Student Trustees      J. Davis  
        S. Sterling 
 
Superintendent       C. Lawrance  

 
Assistant Superintendent     M. Sheldon  
 
Secretary Treasurer       M. Friesen 
 
Assistant Secretary Treasurer     L. Rusnjak 
 
Executive Assistant       K. Buckland  

 
 
  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES AND METIS COMMUNITY 
 
  AGENDA 
 
25/176  It was moved by Trustee Rainer and seconded by Trustee Kent-Laidlaw 
  
  THAT the agenda be adopted as presented. 

MOTION CARRIED 
  MINUTES 
 
25/177  It was moved by Trustee Kent-Laidlaw and seconded by Trustee Hoisington 
  
  THAT the minutes of the Open Meeting held November 12, 2025, be adopted as presented.  

MOTION CARRIED 
  Business Arising from the Minutes  
 
  None. 
 



Report of the Closed Meeting held November 12, 2025. 
 

25/178  It was moved by Trustee Rainer and seconded by Trustee Jepsen 
  
  THAT the report of the Closed Meeting held November 12, 2025, be adopted as presented.  

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Report of the Special Closed Meeting held November 17, 2025. 
 

25/179  It was moved by Trustee Jepsen and seconded by Trustee Kent-Laidlaw  
  
  THAT the report of the Closed Meeting held November 17, 2025, be adopted as presented.  

MOTION CARRIED 
 

  Presentation – Vince Kanigan – Embedded Professional Development (Calendar) 
   

Merritt District Teachers Union representative Vince Kanigan spoke to the Trustees, advocating for the 
inclusion of professional development days in the regular school year while maintaining a two-week 
Spring Break.  
 
The Board of Education requested that the NVDTU share the survey results from both Merritt and 
Princeton Pro-D committees regarding embedded professional development and Summer Institute with 
the Board for informed decision making.   

   
EDUCATION 

 
Indigenous Education Update  
 
Superintendent Lawrance spoke to the written report submitted from the District Principal of Indigenous 
Education, Angela McIvor, highlighting the Grade 9 youth conference that was held on November 6, 
2025, at NVIT.  
 
Inclusive Education, Early Learning and Childcare Update  

   
The Director of Instruction of Inclusive Education, Childcare, and Early Learning, Adriane Mouland, 
presented on sex trafficking prevention & awareness. The Board will share the presentation with their 
school PACs and admin.  

  
  Superintendent’s Report   
 

The Superintendent circulated her report and spoke about the various events that have taken place 
across the School District over the past month.  
 
OPERATIONS 
 
Potential School Closure Community Consultation Update  
 
Superintendent Lawrance provided the Trustees with an update on the potential school closure 
community consultation, noting that a second round of consultation meetings is scheduled to take place  
in January and February. 
 
 



 
The Bridge – Location for 2026 – 2027 
 
Superintendent Lawrance mentioned that last year, the Board passed a motion to have The Bridge 
alternate program in Princeton remain in the old Board Office location for the 2025-2026 school year, 
where the program was relocated during the construction of the new Childcare Center at Riverside. The 
Board agreed to review the program's location annually. 
 

25/180  It was moved by Trustee Chenoweth and seconded by Trustee Kent-Laidlaw  
  
  THAT The Bridge remain at its current location for the 2026 - 2027 school year. 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
AUDIT AND FINANCE 
 
2025-2026 Amended Budget Update 
 
The Secretary Treasurer provided Trustees with an overview of the 2025 – 2026 Budget Cycle, 
highlighting the key dates.  
 
Trustee Chenoweth inquired whether, in February, the Board would be presented with two budget 
scenarios: one reflecting the potential school closure and another assuming no school closure. 
 
Secretary Treasurer Friesen responded that the potential school closure will affect next year’s school 
budget. 

  
POLICY & ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 
 
Administrative Procedures 
 
Superintendent Lawrance informed the Trustees that there was an additional administrative procedure 
that was not in the package. Trustees were given a copy of the Communicable Disease Outbreak 
Management Admin Procedure for review. 
 
Trustee Reports: 
 
Student Trustee Reports 
 
Assistant Superintendent Sheldon had assigned the Merritt Student Trustees to reflect on some of the 
things that MSS does in December to create a festive and welcoming environment during this time of 
year and if they had suggestions for additional small, meaningful activities or ideas for students at this 
time of year.  
 
Student Trustees informed the Board that MSS’s activities include putting up decorations at the 
beginning of December, and MSS excels at bringing students together for various activities including the 
winter dance and winter talent show.  
 
P.A.C. Reports 

  Trustee Hoisington reported on Nicola Canford Elementary.  
  Trustee Rainer reported on John Allison Elementary. 

 Trustee Chenoweth reported on Collettville Elementary and SCIDES. 
 Trustee Kent-Laidlaw reported on Princeton Secondary School.  



 Trustee Jepsen reported on Diamond Vale Elementary and Merritt Central Elementary PAC meeting is 
moved to next week.  

 Trustee Ward reported on Vermilion Forks Elementary PAC meeting.  
 Chair Swan was not present for the Board meeting.  
 
 Other Reports: 

Vice-Chair Ward reported that all Trustees and Senior Administration attended the BCSTA Academy in the 
Lower Mainland, where discussions included matters related to governance and naloxone policy. 
 

  CORRESPONDENCE: 

  NONE 

  PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

  NONE 

ADJOURNMENT 

25/181  Motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Jepsen and seconded by Trustee Kent-Laidlaw  

  THAT the Open Board meeting be adjourned at 7:34pm 

 

 
_____________________________                                       ____________________________ 
Chairperson       Secretary Treasurer 



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Courtney Lawrance 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: INDIGENOUS EDUCATION REPORT DATE: January 14, 2026   
  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The District Principal of Indigenous Education’s report is attached, and we will have a 
presentation related to Indigenous student achievement. 
 

 

CL/sc 
 
 









 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Courtney Lawrance 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: INDIGENOUS STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT DATE: January 14, 2026   
  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The District Principal of Indigenous Education will report to the Board about the achievement of 
our Indigenous Students.  
 

 

CL/sc 
 
 



HAWD (How Are We Doing) Report Summary 2023-2024 
Nicola Similkameen School District No. 58 

 
How are Indigenous in students in SD58 developing and what are areas for interventions or 
further action? 

Background: 

Self-Identification: Once a student has self-identified as being of Aboriginal ancestry (First 
Nations: Status and Non-Status, Métis and Inuit), the student is included in all reported 
outcomes for Aboriginal students. 

Data for 2023-2024 

On/Off Reserve (Sept. data) 
225 on reserve, 729 off reserve 

• Provincial numbers are similar with a large majority of population living off reserve. 
 
Students in alternate programs 
Out of 52 students in the alternate program, 40 of those are Aboriginal 

• We are higher than the provincial average of 42%, we are at 76% 
• We recognize that our district has a high percentage of Aboriginal students so we 

would expect numbers not to be small. 
• FNESC does have concerns about numbers in alternate programs, however it also 

needs to be noted that we do a district-based team meeting before any student 
attends an alternat program. At times this program can be a better fit for a student, 
and it is a well thought out plan and not just a space to “put” someone 
 

 
 
 
 



Students with Disabilities or Diverse Abilities 
• 39% of our district are Aboriginal including SCIDES data (not all students identify 

there) 
• mostly learning disabilities and behavior or mental health designations 
• there are no wait lists for our students, we identify kids as swiftly as possible (but 

note we can’t control wait lists for medical appointments.) 
 

 
 
Foundation Skills Assessment (FSA) Results  
Three levels: Emerging, On Track, Extending 
 
Reading/Literacy 
Gr. 4- Aboriginal – 52% On Track, (Non-Aboriginal – 59%On Track) 

• Provincial average Aboriginal is 54% on track -we are 2% below provincial average. 
 
Gr. 7- Aboriginal – 55% On Track, (Non-Aboriginal – 61% On Track) 

• Provincial average Aboriginal is 55% on track. 
 
Literacy Assessment: Levels: Emerging, Developing, Proficient or Extending 
Gr.10 -Aboriginal -48% Developing,38 % Proficient, (Non-Aboriginal – 34% Developing, 61% 
proficient) 

• Provincial average 35% Developing, 49 % Proficient – lower than provincial averages 
in proficient 

 
Gr. 12 -Aboriginal – 52% Proficient, Non-Aboriginal – 51 % Proficient 

• Provincial average 36% Developing, 52 % Proficient – on par with province 
 
Overall, as a district, only half of our population are developing or proficient in FSA scores 
in Literacy. The percentages of Aboriginal and Non-Aboriginal are fairly even in %. 
 



Numeracy 
Gr. 4- Aboriginal – 51% On Track, Non-Aboriginal – 38%on track  

• We are higher than provincial average of 44% on track 
 
Gr. 7- Aboriginal – 26 % on track, 12 % extending, Non-Aboriginal – 37% on track, 15% 
Extending 

• We are slightly lower than provincial average of 33% on track but higher than 
province with only 3% extending 

 
Numeracy Assessment: Levels: Emerging, Developing, Proficient or Extending 
Gr.10:  Aboriginal -38% Emerging, 48% Developing, 12% proficient 
   Non-Aboriginal – 21%Emerging, 55% Developing, 20 % proficient 

• Again, only half of our students are on track or developing or proficient in numeracy. 
The numbers between Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal are similar, until they reach 
grade 7. At that point there seems to be more non-Aboriginal students that are on 
track or even extending. In grade 10 the gap gets bigger with more Aboriginal 
students in the emerging category. 

 
Course Mark Results Grades 10-12 

• Aboriginal Students showing high percentage of C plus or better in English 10 
(combined), Life Sciences 11, English 12 (combined), English First People’s 12, Pre-
Cal 12 and Contemporary Indigenous Studies 12. 

• But when we look at the number of Aboriginal students taking the Math or Science 
courses compared to non-Aboriginal students, the numbers are low. 

• English First Peoples 37/67 Aboriginal have a C plus or better, 21/25 non-Aboriginal 
have C plus or better. 

• Consistent numbers in Humanities but need more kids in Math and Sciences. 
 
 
Five Year Completion Rate  
The five-year completion rate is the percent of Grade 8 students who graduate with a BC 
Certificate of Graduation ("Dogwood") or a BC Adult Graduation Diploma ("Adult 
Dogwood"), within five years from the first time they enrol in Grade 8, adjusted for 
migration in and out of BC It is not the inverse of a "dropout rate" as students may graduate 
after the five-year period.  
 
In 2023-24, 68% percent of Aboriginal students graduated. 80% of non-Aboriginal students 
graduated. 



• Percentages have gone increasingly down since 2019-2020. 
• We are higher than the provincial average of 65%. 
• We are waiting for the 2024-25 HAWD report, but our FESL shows that 84% of 

Aboriginal students and 81% non-Aboriginal students in 2024/25. Results went up. 
 

 
 
Six Year Completion Rate  
 
The six-year completion rate brings the percentage of Aboriginal students to 77%. 

• We are higher than the provincial average of 75%. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Student Learning Survey Results  
Students were asked various questions to provide their perspectives regarding their sense 
of belonging. (Ie. Do you like school? Do adults treat you fairly? Do you feel safe? Have you 
been bullied? I am happy at school. Is school a place where you feel like you belong? Are 
you learning about First Peoples at school?) 
 
Data that stood out:  
(But note that at times we need to dig deeper and see if students understood the questions 
they were being asked. Moving towards reading questions to students to ensure 
understanding). 

• All grade ¾ students, 59 % claim they like school, 63% say they are treated fairly.  
• Aboriginal students overall felt less likely than non-aboriginal to be happy, welcome 

at school and feeling like they belong. 
• Grade 7 results were consistent between Aboriginal and non. Less than 50% like 

school. Less than 50% feel like they are being taught about Aboriginal people. 70% 
or more feel safe at school, 74 % feel like adults care about them at their school. 

• Grade 10 Aboriginal students showed a higher percentage in a few areas: they like 
school, adults treat them fairly, safe at school, school is preparing for post-
secondary. 43 % of Aboriginal students felt like they belonged, but only 35% of non-
Aboriginal students felt like they belonged. 

• Grade 12 -71% of Aboriginal students felt like teachers helped with schoolwork, only 
55% of non. All other data fairly even between 2 groups. 

 
Summary of Strengths: 

• 2024-2025 data shows that 84% of Aboriginal students graduated and 81% non- 
Aboriginal. Results went up. 

• High number of students taking the English First Peoples class 
• Gr. 12 Literacy Assessment (a provincial measure that assesses proficiency in 

Literacy) 
o Aboriginal – 52% Proficient, Non-Aboriginal – 51 % Proficient 

• All grade 3/4 students, 60 % claim they like school, they are treated fairly.  
• Grade 7 -70% or more feel safe at school, 74 % feel like adults’ care about them at 

their school. 
• Grade 10 Aboriginal students showed a higher percentage in a few areas: they like 

school, adults treat them fairly, safe at school, school is preparing for post-



secondary. 43 % of Aboriginal students felt like they belonged, but only 35% of non-
Aboriginal students felt like they belonged. 

• Grade 12 -71% of Aboriginal students felt like teachers help with schoolwork, only 
55% of non 

 
 Summary of Areas of Growth: 

• Focusing on Literacy and Numeracy in the early years. Approximately only half of our 
school population are meeting expectations. This emphasizes the importance of the 
Literacy and Math coaches that have been put in place for teachers this year. 

• Aboriginal students overall felt less likely than non-aboriginal students to be happy 
at school, welcome at school and feeling like they belong. 

• We can see the result in high school grades. The numbers of Aboriginal students in 
the higher-level math/science courses are low. Not having students in 
Math/Sciences closes doors for Post-Secondary. 

• High percentage of Aboriginal students in alternate programs. 
• Five-year completion rate 68% as opposed to 80% for non-Aboriginal students. 
• Grad percentages have gone increasingly down since 2019-2020 by 3.2 %. 
• The six-year grad completion rate brings the percentage of Aboriginal students to 77. 
• Grade 7 results were consistent between Aboriginal and non. Less than 50% like 

school. Less than 50% feel like they are being taught about Aboriginal people. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Courtney Lawrance 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: INCLUSIVE EDUCATION, EARLY LEARNING  DATE: January 14, 2026       
  & CHILDCARE REPORT   
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Director of Instruction for Inclusive Education, Childcare, and Early Learning’s report is 
attached.  
 

 

CL/sc 
 
 



Director of Instruction – Inclusive Education &  

Early Learning Child Care Report 

January 2026 

 

**To enhance accessibility, this document can be easily read out loud 
through various text-to-speech programs. The background color, font size, 
and font choice are intentionally selected to enhance readability. ** 

Here are a few updates and highlights from last month: 
 

Early Learning and Kindergarten Transitions 

The Ministry of Education and Child Care is preparing to release 
the Working Guides for Strengthening Early Years to Kindergarten 
Transitions (SEY2K), a provincial resource designed to support 
smoother, more intentional transitions for children and families 
entering the K–12 system. Strong transitions are critical, as 
children’s earliest experiences with school significantly influence 
their sense of belonging, well-being, and engagement as learners. 
The SEY2K framework emphasizes relationship-building, shared 
understanding, and thoughtful information exchange between 
families, early learning providers, and schools. This aligns nicely 
with our Strategic Plan.  
 

For students in our district, this work has the potential to reduce 
anxiety, support continuity of learning and development, and 
ensure that children arrive at kindergarten feeling known, 
welcomed, and ready to learn.  
 

For families, SEY2K reinforces clear communication, trust, and 
partnership with schools, particularly for those navigating 
transitions for the first time or for children with additional needs.  
 

Once released, we will review the Working Guides to consider how 
they can further strengthen existing practices and enhance 
collaboration with community partners in ways that best meet the 
needs of children and families. 



 

School Community and Family Connection 
 

Throughout the month of December, I had the opportunity to attend 
Christmas concerts and celebrations across the district. These events 
highlighted the warmth, joy, and strong sense of belonging that are 
hallmarks of our schools. Families were welcomed into school spaces 
that felt inclusive, vibrant, and deeply connected to their communities. 
The concerts were also a clear reflection of the dedication, creativity, 
and countless hours contributed by teachers and staff to create 
meaningful experiences for students. The pride students showed in 
their performances, and the appreciation expressed by families, 
reinforced the important role schools play as community gathering 
places and the deep investment our staff make in nurturing positive 
relationships. 

 

Critical Incident Response and Care for One Another 
 

Over the past several weeks, the district has drawn upon the BC 
Safer Schools Critical Incident Response framework in response to 
difficult circumstances within our community. While these moments 
are always challenging, they also reveal the strength, compassion, 
and professionalism of our staff. Teachers, support staff, and 
administrators consistently stepped forward to support students, 
colleagues, and families with care, sensitivity, and a strong focus on 
well-being. The framework provided clear guidance, but it was the 
human response—relationships, empathy, and steady presence—
that made the greatest difference. We are grateful for the way staff 
support one another and our students during times of hardship, 
reinforcing that schools are not only places of learning, but places of 
care and connection. 

 

Throughout the next month I am looking forward to being a part of the 
Collaborative Support meetings in our elementary schools and working 
towards ensuring all students have the best supports put in place.  



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Courtney Lawrance 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: 2026/2027 DISTRICT CALENDAR DATE: January 14, 2026       
  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
As per Ministry requirements, the 2026/2027 District Calendar will be brought forward for 
consideration.  Our Calendar survey in November and December showed that 71% of parents and 
69% of staff would find having three years of School Calendars helpful. The Calendar regulation 
allows Boards to pass up to three years of school calendars at a time. 
 
As a result, sample calendars for 2026-2027, 2027-2028, and 2028-2029 are attached. 
 
The calendars include the correct number of days in session and days of instruction meeting the 
Ministry of Education requirements.  The Non-Instructional Days are outlined below: 
 

• 3 Non-Instructional days for the Summer Institute in August 
• 2 Non-Instructional days scheduled in October and February 
• 1 Non-Instructional day in-lieu in March 
• 1 Non-Instructional administrative day in June 

 
After Board approval of the two drafts, the calendars will be provided to our rights holders, 
stakeholders and the public for notification and feedback and returned for final approval of one 
version at the February board meeting. 

 

CL/sc 
 
 



 

D R A F T 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

29 30 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30
30 31

MAY JUNE

JANUARY FEBRUARY

MARCH APRIL

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

SCHOOL CALENDAR FORM - GENERAL                                  

2026/2027 CALENDAR
JULY AUGUST

Version 1  
 
September 29, 2026 – Pro-D Day     184 days of Instruction   
October 23, 2026 – Provincial Pro-D Day    190 days in Session  
November 12, 2026 – Pro-D Day     6 Non-Instruction Days 
February 12, 2027 – Regional Pro-D Day      
April 30, 2027 – Indigenous Prod-D Day 
June 30, 2027 – Admin Day  
 
     
     



 

 

D R A F T 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

29 30 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30
30 31

SCHOOL CALENDAR FORM - GENERAL                                  

2026/2027 CALENDAR
JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

MAY JUNE

JANUARY FEBRUARY

MARCH APRIL

Version 2 
August 31, September 1 & 2, 2026 – Summer Institute   182 days of Instruction   
October 23, 2026 – Provincial Pro-D Day     188 days in Session 
February 12, 2027 – Regional Pro-D Day     6 Non-Instructional Days 
March 22,23,24, 2027 – Days in Lieu - Summer Institute 
March 25, 2027 – Day in Lieu - Indigenous Pro-D     
June 30, 2027 – Admin Day – No School 

 
     
     



 

D R A F T 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29
30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30

JULY AUGUST

MARCH 

JUNE

APRIL 

MAY

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

2027/2028 CALENDAR

SCHOOL CALENDAR FORM - GENERAL                                  

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

Version 1 
September 29, 2027 – Pro-D Day      185 days of Instruction 
October 22, 2027 – Provincial Pro-D Day     191 days in Session  
November 12, 2027 – Pro-D Day      6 Non-Instruction Days 
February 18, 2028 – Regional Pro-D Day      
April 28, 2028 – Prod-D Day 
June 30, 2028 – Admin Day  
 
     
    
 



 

 

D R A F T 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29
30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

2027/2028 CALENDAR

SCHOOL CALENDAR FORM - GENERAL                                  

JULY AUGUST

MARCH 

JUNE

APRIL 

MAY

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

Version 2 
August 30 & 31 and September 1, 2027– Summer Institute   183 days of Instruction  
October 22, 2027 – Provincial Pro-D Day     189 days in Session  
February 18, 2028 – Regional Pro-D Day     6 Non-Instruction Days 
March 27, 28, 29, 2028 – Days in Lieu – Summer Institute 
March 30, 2028 – Day in Lieu - Indigenous Pro-D     
June 30, 2028 – Admin Day – No School 
 
     
    



 

D R A F T 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 31
30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

MAY JUNE

MARCH APRIL 

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

JULY AUGUST

SCHOOL CALENDAR FORM - GENERAL                                  

2028/2029 CALENDAR

Version 1 
September 29, 2028 – Pro-D Day     181 days of Instruction  
October 20, 2028 – Provincial Pro-D Day    187 days in Session  
November 10, 2027 – Pro-D Day     6 Non-Instruction Days 
February 16, 2029 – Regional Pro-D Day      
April 27, 2029 – Prod-D Day 
June 29, 2028 – Admin Day  
Note:  October 2 – TRC Day in lieu, November 13 – Remembrance Day in lieu,  
 
     
     



 

D R A F T 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 1 2 3 4 5

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 31
30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

MAY JUNE

MARCH APRIL 

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY 

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

JULY AUGUST

SCHOOL CALENDAR FORM - GENERAL                                  

2028/2029 CALENDAR

Version 2 
August 28, 29 and 30, 2028– Summer Institute    184 days of Instruction 
October 20, 2028 – Provincial Pro-D Day     190 days in Session 
February 16, 2029 – Regional Pro-D Day     6 Non-Instruction Days 
March 29, 2029 – Day in Lieu - Indigenous Pro-D     
June 29, 2029 – Admin Day – No School 
Note:  October 2 – TRC in lieu day, November 13 – Remembrance Day in lieu day.  
 
        



 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Mark Friesen 
   Secretary Treasurer 
  
RE: 2025-26 Amended Budget - Update DATE: January 9, 2026       
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2025-26 funding from the Ministry was confirmed in mid-December based on the district’s 
1701 enrolment data for September 30, 2025.  Based on submitted enrolment, the district 
will receive an increase of $798,000 in funding from what was projected in the preliminary 
budget.  At the same time, the preliminary budget has anticipated $1.567 million of 
additional funding to come from new SCIDES enrolment so this increased funding gets the 
district half way there.  We are confident that continued SCIDES enrolment will meet this 
revenue target. 
 
Classroom Enhancement Funding (CEF) provides the district with additional teaching staff 
to meet class size and composition requirements from restored language of the 2002 
provincial agreement.  For 2025-26, the district will receive funding for 35.8 teacher FTE 
up from 34.8 FTE in 2024-25. 
 
The Finance team along with senior leadership continue to review key budget assumptions 
and will bring a finalized amended budget for approval at the February board meeting. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Mark Friesen 
Secretary Treasurer/CFO 
____________________________________ 
Nicola-Similkameen School District 
 
 



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Mark Friesen 
   Secretary Treasurer 
  
RE: STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE: January 9, 2026       
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Enclosed, Trustees will find a copy of the Statement of Financial Information (SOFI report), 
which has been filed for the 2024-2025 school year in accordance with the Financial 
Information Act. 
 
The SOFI Report is arranged in the following order: Approval of Statement of Financial 
Information; Table of contents; Financial Information Act Submission Checklist; Audited 
Financial Statements; Schedule of Debt; Schedule of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements; 
Statement of Severance Agreements; Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses; Schedule of 
Payments for Goods and Services; Statement of Reconciliation of Payments to Financial 
Statements; Management Report. 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Mark Friesen 
Secretary Treasurer/CFO 
____________________________________ 
Nicola-Similkameen School District 
 
Encl. 2024-25 Statement of Financial Information Report 
 



















































































































 
 
 
 
 

 Princeton Pickleball Association 
     Email: princetonpickleballassoc@gmail.com 

 
January 6, 2026 
Similkameen District 58 
(Nicola-Similkameen) 
1550 Chapman Street 
Merritt ,B.C. 
V1K 1B8 
 
Dear Ms C. Lawrence and School District 58 Trustees, 
 
We are writing to you regarding the fees Princeton Pickleball Association (PPA) has 
paid from November 3 to December 19, 2025 for indoor play at the YMCA Riverside 
Learning Centre. During this period the $25.00 per hour rent totalled $1785.00 
including GST.  Unfortunately, due to the expense of the 5 day gym rental, PPA  has 
had to reduce the 2026 Riverside rental to three days a week.    
 
 We also rent Vermilion Forks gym at $25.00 per hour. Vermilion Forks is well lit and is 
large enough for two courts. Riverside gym is only large enough for one undersized 
court. The lighting in the gym is very poor as maintenance is having difficulty finding 
replacement bulbs for the two burned out lights. 
 
It is our hope that considerations will be made to reduce the rental fees of Riverside 
Learning Centre. Could we request the current $25.00 per hour be reduced to $15.00 
per hour? This reduced rental rate would allow PPA to rent the gym space at Riverside 
Learning Resource Centre from Monday through Friday weekly from January 2026 
through to March 2026. 
 
We are asking you, our School Board, to add our request to your agenda for your 
upcoming meeting on January 14, 2026. 
 
Princeton Pickleball Association has always promoted Pickleball as a fun, physically 
active, social and healthy lifestyle choice for all ages, by creating and maintaining 
programs, places to play and partnerships for the benefit of the whole community.    
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
Princeton Pickleball Association 

 




	2 Open Agenda Jan 14 2026
	_OPEN Board Minutes December 10, 2025
	6a - Indigenous Education Report Memo
	6a a - Indigenous Education Report - January 2026
	1
	2
	3

	6b - Indigenous Student Achievement
	6b a - HAWD report summary
	6c - Inclusive Ed., Early Learning, Childcare Report Memo
	6c a - DI Board Report - January 2026
	6d - 2026-2027, 2027-2028, 2028-2029 School Calendars
	6d 1 - 2026-2027 Calendar - Option A - Dec.17.2025
	6d 2 - 2026-2027 Calendar - Option B & C - Dec.17.2025
	6d 3 - 2027-2028 Calendar - Option A - Dec.17.2025
	6d 4 - 2027-2028 Calendar - Option B & C - Dec.17.2025
	6d 5 - 2028-2029 Calendar - Option A
	6d 6 - 2028-2029 Calendar - Option B & C
	7a - Ministry of Education Funding Annoucement (Budget update)
	7b - 2024-25 Statement of Financial Position Report
	7b i - 2024-25 SD58 SOFI Report
	10a - Letter to Trustees - Princeton Pickleball Association
	10b - DPACCorrespondence - January 9, 2026



